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The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

The Board of Directors of the public Company “The Mall of Cyprus Mc Pl¢c” (the “Company”),
on the Ql;\ April 2019, approved the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018. The Board further resolved that no dividend shall be declared for the
aforementioned period.

Copies of the full and complete text of the financial statements for the period ended 31 December
2018 can be obtained from the registered office of the Company at the Mall of Cyprus 3, Vergina
str., Strovolos, Nicosia, Cyprus or by sending an email request at christos.kafourisianeo.law
without any charge.

The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

/>ecretary MONTRAGO SERVICES LIMITED

Date: 25 April 2018
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Dsclaration of the members of the Board of Direstors and of other officers of the
company for the financlai statémerits

According lo Article 8, subseclions (3) (o) and (7) of tha Transparency Requirements
(Traded Seciriles an a Regulated Market) Lew of 2007 (Law’), we the members of the
Board of Difectors and olher officers responsible for the financial statements of The Malt of
Cyprus {MC) Flc for the yeer ended 31 Dacember 208, we confirm that, aceording to our
imowledge;

8) The annual financlal slalements preserted on pages 13 lo 64 were:

{i) prepered In aapondance with International Financlal Reporiing Stendards as adaptad by
tha Europesn Unlon and i accordance with the provisions of subsection {4) of the Ac!,
and

{§) give & true and falr view of assels and liabiiities, financial position gnd profit of The Mall
of Cyprus (MC) Fle, and

b) The Managemant Report provides a fair overview of the developments and
performenoe of the business and flnenckil position of The fviall of Cyprus (MG} Plo,
together with & description of the principat risks and uncerfalnites faced by the Company.

Membere of the Board of Direclors
John Gaorge Mavrokordatos - Dyector

George Mouskldes - Director

Takls Christodotiou - Diraclor

ierfin Clivier - Diractor

Responelbla for the Praparation of thess Finenclal Stale

Antonla Constantinoti — Financial Controfler et 5.1 %
Nicosla, 24 April 2018
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The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Management Report

1 The Board of Directors presents its report together with the audited financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2018,

Principal activities and nature of operations of the Company

2 The principal activity of the Company, which is unchanged from last year, Is the
leasing/granting of rights of use of space of its property, the Shacalas Emporium Park
which includes a Shopping Mall, an IKEA store and other building developments for
retall/commercial purposes.

Change of financial year end

3 At the Company’s Board of Directors meeting held on 6 November 2017, the Board
of Diractors decided to change the financial year end of the Company from 30 June to 31
December of each respective year.

4 Due to the change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 December, the
Company's comparative financial information presented in these financial statements
cover the 8 month petiod from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas the curent
period financial information presented cover the year from 1 January 201810 31
December 2018. The reason for the change is the fact that the Company's shareholders'
financial year end is 31 Dacember. Therefore, the numbers related to the results and cash
flows of the comparative period {6 months) as presented in these financial staiemants are
not comparable to the current year's figures (12 months).

Changes in group structure

5 During the year there were no changes in the Group structure of the Company.
The Company does not intend to proceed with any acquisitions or mergers.

Review of developments, position and performance of the Company’s business

6 The Company's turnover for the year ended 31 December 2018 was €11 .458.368
compared to €6,060.813 for the six month period ended 31 December 201 7. The
operating profit of the Company for the year was €16.709.197 {six months pericd 2017
€5,556.083).

7 The profit after tax of the Company for the year ended 31 Decembar 2018 was
€12.679.007 (slx month period 2017: €3,136.633).

8 As at 31 December 2018 the Company's lotal agsefs amounted to €200.479.030
(2017: €179.777.135) and its net assets amounted to €85.926.122 (2017: net assets
€73.247.025). The financial position, development and performance of the Company as
presented in these financial statements are considered satisfactory.
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The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc
Management Report (continued)

Princlipal risks and uncertaintias

2] The principal rigks and uncertaintles faced by the Company are disclosed in
Notes 1, 8 and 7 of the flnancial statements.

Use of financial insfruments by the Company

10 The Company's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including fair value interest rate risk and cash flow interest rate risk), credit risk and
liquidity risk.

11 The Company's risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse eflects on the Company's
financial performance. Risk management is carried out by Management and approved by
the Board of Directors. Management identifies, evaluates and hedges financial risks in
close co operation with the Company's operating units. The Board provides written
principles and / or oral for overall risk management, as well as written and / or oral policies
covering specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credlt risk, and investment of excess
liquidity.

Cash flow and falr value Interest rate risk

12 The Company’s interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings
Issued at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at
fixed rates expose the Company fo fair value interest rate risk. All borrowings are at
variable rates.

13 As at 31 December 2018, the Company's liabilities which bors variable interest
rates amounted to €86.385.679, The Company's management manitors the interest rate
fluctuations on a continuous basls and acts accordingly. The Company does not apply
hedge accounting for cash flow interest rata risk.

Credit risk

14 Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and
financial institutions, contractual cash flows of debt investments carried at amortised cost,
as well as credit exposures to tennants, including outstanding receivables and committed
transacilons.

15 Credit risk is managed on a group basis. For banks and finandial institutions, only
those that are highly rated by the Board of Directors are accepted. If lessees / users are
independently rated, these ratings are used. Otherwise, if there is no independent rating,
management assesses the credit qualily of the lessees / users, taking info account its
financial position, past experience and other factors. Individual credit limits and credit
terms are set basad on the credit quality of the iessee / user in accordance with Jimits set
by the Board. The utilisation of credit fimits is regularly monitored. No cradit limits were
exceeded during the reporting pericd, and management does not expect any losses from
non performance by these counterparties. Sales to lessees / users are settled in cash ar
using major credit cards,
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The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Management Report (continued)

Princlpal risks and uncertainties (continued)

16 The Company's credit risk arises from frade receivables amounting to €1.201.261,
financial assets carried at amortised cost amounting ta €584.,147 and bank balances
amounting to €1.467.308. On 1 January 2018 the Company adopted IFRS 9 “Financial
Instruments" and its credit risk management policies have been amended accordingly to
take info consideration the expected credit loss model introduced by IFRS 9. For further
detalls refer to Note 8 Section Credit risk.

Liguidity risk

17 Management monitors the current liquidity position of the Company based on
expected cash flows and expected revenue receipts. Or a long-term basis, liquidily risk is
defined based on the expected future cash flows at the time of entering into new credit
facilities of loans and based on budgeted forecasts. Management believes that It is
successful in managing the Company's liquidity risk.

Future developments of the Company

18 During 2017, the Company commenced the project for the expansion of The Mall
of Cyprus by about an additional area of 6000 m2, which will be used for retail,
antertainment and cultural purposes in order to meet the demands of its customersvisitors
and also increase the variety of offerings at the mall. The first phase of the project was
completed on 28 March 2019 and most of the spaces have already been leased out. The
sacond phase which will be completed in July 2019, will see the projact almost taking its
final form, with more stores and existing shops transfered in new venues. With the
expansion, about an additional 300 parking places shall be created as well.

Results

18 The Company's results for the period are set out on page 13. The profit for the
year is retained.

Share capital

20  There were no changes in the share capital of the Company.

Board of Directors

21 The members of the Board of Directors at 31 December 2018 and at the date of
this report are shown on page 1. All of them were members of the Board throughout the

year ended 31 December 2018,

22 In accordance with the Company's Articles of Association Messrs Takis
Christodoulou, John George Mavrokordatos, George Mouskides and Martin Olivier, retire
at the next Annual General Meeting and, being eligible, offer themsalves for re-election.
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The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Management Report {continued)

Board of Directors {continued)

23  There were no significant changes In the assignment of responsibilities and
ramuneratlor: of the Board of Diractors,

Events after the balance sheet date

24 There were no material post balance sheet events, which have a bearing on the
understanding of the financial statements other than the matter refemmed to Note 27,

Branchas

25 The Company did not operate through any branches during the period.

Directors' interests in the Company’s share capital

28  The members of the Board of Directors did not control directly or indirectly the
ghara capital of the Company, at 31 Dacember 2018 and as at the date of this report.

27 Except from the balances and transactions disclosed in Note 26 of the financial
statements, there were no other significant contracts with the Company or it subsidiaries
or related companies, in which a Director or related parties had a significant interest.

Maln shareholders

28  Atthe date of this report, the following shareholders of the Company held directly

or indirectly over 5% of the Company's issued share capital;
Percantage of shareholding

%
Direct shareholder:
Atterbury Cyprus Limited 09,67
Indirect shareholder:
Atterbury Onroerend Goed Houdster Europe
Cooperatief U.A (WNatherands) through its
indirect shareholding in Atterbury Cyprus 54,55
Limited

©)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc
Management Report (continued)

Independent Audltors
29  The Indepandent Auditors, PricewsterhouseCoopers Limited, have expressed their

willingness to continue in office. A resslution giving authority 1o the Board of Directors fo
{ix their remuneration wiil be proposed at the Annual General Measting,

By Order of the Board

tragd Services Lirmn
ompany Sscrefary

e 2019 MONTRAGO SERVICES IMITED-
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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of The Mail of Cyprus (MC) Ple

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Pic (the
“Company) give a true and fair view of the financial posgition of the Company as at 31 December
2018, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Intesnational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) as adopted by the European Union and the
requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

‘What we have audited
‘We have andited the financial staternents which are presented in pages 13 to 64 and comprise:

s the statement of financial position at 31 December 2018;

s  gtatement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2018;

¢ the statement of changes in equity fox the year ended 31 December 2018;

s the statement of cash flows for the year ended 31 December 2018; and

. pﬂ:; notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting
cies.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in the preparation of the financial
staternents is International Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union and
the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap, 113.

Basis for opinion

‘We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

‘We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for otr opinion.

Independence

‘We remained independent of the Company throughout the period of our appointment in
secordanee with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for
Professional Aecountants (IESBA Code) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to
our audit of the financial statements in Cyprus and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the TESBA Code.

PricewaterhouseCoopers Lid, PwC Centrai, 43 Demostheni Severi Avenue, CY-1080 Nicosia , Cyprus

P O Box 21612, CY-1591 Nicosia, Cyprus

T: +8957 - 22 555 000, F: +357 - 22 555 001, unuw.pwc.com/cy

Pﬂmuhmu(!mpm Tidina mmwwﬂ In Cyprus (Reg. ¥0\ 143594)- Its registered office is ak 3 Thembstocles Dervis Street, CV-1068, Nicosia. A
ligtof the 's directors § he present and fonmer Gf any!) natne and sutname and nationality, if not Cyprio! and for lazal entities the

corposate mame, is bythnSomyofm at its regstored office, PwC refers to the Cyprus member firm, PricewatechousCoopers Lid oad may sometimes
;d‘grmmaMneﬁn;rh Fach member fim 3= a separate lagal antity. Please tee www, pive.stinfstrctare for forther details.
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Key audit matters incorporating the most significant risks of material misstatements,
including assessed risk of material misstatements due to fraud

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance
in our andit of the financial stateraents of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the finaneial staternents as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters,

Fair

uation tment
Refer to Note 4, Summary of significant
accounting policies, Note 7, Critical accounting
estimates and judgements and Note 17
Investment property.

Management estimated the fair value of the
Investment Property to be €195.850.000 as at 31
December 2018, The Investment property is
presented on the Balance sheet at the value of
€195.850.000 which includes cummulative
additions for project under construction to date
of €19.691,008. The total value of the
Investment property represent approximately
08% of the Company’s total assets.

The investment property valuations are
dependent on certain key assumptions that
require significant management judgement
including terminal capitalisation rates, discount
rate and fair market rents. Some of these
estimates and judgements are subject to market
forces and will change over time. The external
valuations as at 31 December 2018 were utilised
by management in arriving at its estitates.

Our audit procedures in relation to
Management’s valuation of Investment
Property included an evaluation of the
Management’s and the Management’s
independent external valuer’s competency,
capabilities and objectivity.

‘We have also assessed the mathematical
accuracy, methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions used,
by comparing with general economie and
market specific expectations and engaging
our in-house valuation experts to assess
whether the assumptions used were within a
reasonable range of acceptable assumptions.

Furthermore we evaluated the adequacy of
the Company’s disclosures in the financial
staternents regarding the valuation of its
investment property.

The results of our audit procedures were
satisfactory.

()
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Reporting on other information

The Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Management Report and the Declaration of the members of the
Board of Directors and of other officers of the company for the financial statementa hut does not
include the financial statements and our anditor's report thereon.

QOur opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we de not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information identified above and, in doing sa, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated, If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of the Board of Directors and those charged with governance for

the Financial Statements

The Board of Directors is regponsible for the preparation of the financial statements that give a true
and fair view in accordance with International Financial Reparting Standards as adopted by the
European Union and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113, and for such
internal control as the Board of Directors determines is necessary to enable the preparation of
financial statements that ave free from material misstaternent, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the Board of Directors is responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
conecern and using the going coneern hasis of aecounting uniess the Board of Divectors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to ceaze operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with goverrance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s finaneial reporting
process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our ohjectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, butisnot a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a matexial
misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

(10)
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

o [dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those rigks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve coltusion, forgery, intentional omissions, migrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

«  Obtain an nnderstanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion an the effectiveness of the Company's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

« Conclude on the appropriateness of the Board of Directors’ nse of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt an the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion, Cur conclusions are based on the
atidit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repart. However, futare events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continne as a going concern,

o TRvaluate the overall presentation, siructure and content of the financial statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in 2 manner that achieves a true and fair view.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planmed
scope and timing of the audit and signifieant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters

that were of most significance in the sudit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters.

(1)
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Report on Other Legal Requirements

Pursuant to the additional requirements of the Auditors Law of 2017, we report the following:

= [nour opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of our audit , the management
report has been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Cyprus Companies
Law, Cap. 113, and the information given is consistent with the financial statements.

s In our opinion, and in the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Company and
its environment obtained in the course of the audit, we have not identified material
misstatements in the management report,

Other Matter

This report, including the opinion, has been prepared for and only for the Company’s members asa
body in accordance with Section 69 of the Aunditors Law of 2017 and for no other purpose, We do
not, in giving this opinion, accept or assume responsibility for any other purpose or to any other
person to whose knowladge this report may come to.

The engagement pariner on the andit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Nicos A.
ﬁ:ﬁd ulony
- n (W
Nicos A. Theodoulou
Certified Public Accountant and Registered Auditor
for and on behalf of

PricewaterhouseCoopers Limited
Certified Public Accountants and Registered Auditors

PwC Central, 43 Demostheni Severi Avenue
CY-1080 Nicosia Cyprus

24 April 2019

(12)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Statement of comprehensive income
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Rights for uge of space and other income
Adminlstrative expenses

Othar income

Othar gaina -~ nat

Operating profit

Finance cosls

Profit before iIncome tax

Income tax expense

Profit and total comprehensive Income for the periodiyaar

Year ended

Decembar
2018
Note €

a 11.453.368
11 {1.250.747)
8 293.873
10 _6.218.902

16.709.197

13 _(2.487.486)
14.521.712

14 _{1.842.815)
12.679.097

Earnings per share atlributable to the Company's shareholders {(cents per share).

Basic and fully diluted - cents (Note 15}

Year ended
31
December
2018

€

12,88

The notes on pages 17 to 64 are an integral part of the financial statements.

For the
period from
1 July 2017

to 31
December
2017

€

6.060.813
(637.080)
132,330

5,556,083

{1.767.012)
3,789,071

{B52.438)
3.136,633

For the
period from
1 July 2017

to 31
December
2017

€

3,14

(13)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Statement of financial position
at 31 December 2018

31 Pegorbar 31 Dacamber

2040 2047
Nole & [ 4
Assels
Hon-turrent assets
Property, plont snd equipment 16 180,840 160,239
huvesiment propbry 17 194.050.000 114734984
Financial aessls st emodiesd cosl % __Jaspog .
—M96:438840 174,004 293
Qurrent nssols
Fmpwn[’ 1.406.474 1.560.207
Trada roceivables i 1.201.261 702,719
Flnznelal aseels at amariised cost 18 460,047 -
Othar recelvablos - 683861
Cash In hand and at hank 19 __ 1487.308 1821928
— 43100 4072000
Tolal assats =2A04Z2.030  A7RJITIN8
Eguity and liabilities
Cuplisl divd roaervas
Bhare ﬁpﬂal 20 50.000.000 £0.000.000
Relalned eamings — 35826122  _ 23,247,008
Tatal aquity — 86,088,122 _ 73.247,025
Non-aurrantitablillles
Borrawings a4 78.000.291 65,004,808
Defarred Incoine lax Fahifies a2 18402.930 17260304
Trada and ather peyables @ 23RN
~ENTREO0 (4877003
Currgnt Habllilles '
Trade and olher payables 24 4370.011 4,910.841
Cutrent Incame Lax iabilllies 42016 175,298
Borowings 2t _ 10426308 15165573
—Mr024 199621418
Total ltakilitles 4882008 | 400,530.140
0470030  UBZIRA

Total eqetity and Rahdiites

On 24 April 201 the Board of Dirsafora of Tha Mall of Cyprus (MGC) Ple suthorisad {hese
financlal statements for fsaua,

John Gearge Mavrekondatos, Director W

A

The nates on pages 17 to 64 ars aff Intagral pag-Gf theea financlal slataments.

Gaorge Mouskides, Diraclor
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The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Statement of changes in equity
for the year ended 31 December 2018

Balance at 1 July 2017

Gomprehensiva income
Profit for the period

Balance at 31 Dacamber 20171 January
2018

Comprehensive income
Profit for the yaar

Balance at 34 Dacember 2018

Share Relained
capital eamings™ Totel
€ € €

50,000,000 20110392 70110382

- 5138633 _3,196.693

0, 000 3,247, 73,247,025

- 12.670.007 12,679,087
50.000.000 35,926,122 85926122

{1) Companias which do ot distribute 70% of their profits after tax, as defined by the Special Confribution for the
Defanca of tha Rapublic Law, by the end of the iwo years afier the end of the year of assessment to which the
profits refer, will ba deemed to have distributed this amount as dividend. Spedial contribution for deferce will be
payable on auch deemed dividend lo tha extent that the sharehalders for deamad dividend distribution purposes al
ihe and of the perlod of two years from the end of the year of assesement to which the profits refer, are Cyprus tax
rasidents and damiciled. The special contribution for defence rate Inereased from 16% to 17% in respect of profils
of year of assessment 2000 and 1o 20% in respect of profits of years of asseesment 2010 and 2011 and was
reduced back ta 17% in respect of profits of years of assessment 2012 onwards, The amount of this deemed
dividend distribution I reduced by any aclual dividend pald out of tha profits of the relevant yaar by the and of the
patiod of two years from the end of the year of asseasment fo which the profits refer. This apeclal contribution for

defence Is paid by ihe Company for the eccount of the shareholders.

The notaes on pages 17 to 64 are an integral part of these financial statements,

(15)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

Statement of cash flows
for the year ended 31 December 2018

For tha
peried from
Year endad 1 July 2017
=1 ta 31
December Dacamber
2018 2017
Nota € €
Cash flows from operating acfivities
Profit before income tax 14.821,712 3.789.071
Adjustments for:
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment 16 8399 6.887
Fair value gaine on investment property 10&17 (6.216.802) -
Inferest axpense 13 2.187.486 1.767.186
Interast income caleulated using the effective Interest rate method 8 ___ [{30.488) {8,740)

10.470.208 5.553.414
Changes n working capital:

Trade and other receivables - {1.710.208)
Trade recelvables (498.642} -
Other current assets 1,342.784 -
Financlal assels at amaortised costs (584.147) -
Trade and other payablea —{380.77)) _§10.804
Cash generated from operatlons 10,338.632 4,454,012
Income tax pald —1826.382) |, _{477.749)
Net cash generated from operating activities -9.613.170 3.976,263
Cash flows used in investing activities
Purchases of investment property {14.765.700) (4.380.348)
Interast received — 30488 8.740
Net ¢ash used in invesling activitles (14.785.244) {4,.379.806)
Cash flows from financing activities
Praceeds from bank borrowings 18.485.681 2,618,322
Repayments of bank bormowings {4.176.0685) (1.740.339)
Procaeds from loans from related partias 26(v) 1.559.484 3.741.370
Repayments of Joans to related parties 26{v) (9.333.288) (2,215.020)
Iinterast paid (2.567.272) {1.292.35Q)
Net cash from financing activities —3.962.520 1.111.883
Net (decrease)/increase In cash and cash equivalants {1.259.524) 708.640
Cash and cash squivalents at beginning of year/period (including
Impact of adoption of IFRS 9 on 1 January 2018) 1.621.925 913.285
Gash and cash equivalents at end of yeariperiod 18 362401 1.621.925

The notes on pages 17 to 84 are an integral part of these financial statements.
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The Mall of Cyprus (NMIC) Plc
Notes to the financial statements

1 General information

Country of incorporation

The Company [s incorporated and domiciled in Cyprus as a private limited liability
company in accordance with the provisions of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113 and
listed on the (unregulated) Emerging Companies Market of the Cyprus Stock Exchange.
Its registered office is at 3 Verginas Street, The Mall of Cyprus, Strovolos, 2025, Nicosia,

Cyprus.

Princlpal activities

The principal activity of the Company, which is unchanged from last year, is the
leasing/granting of Hights of use of space of its properly, the Shacotas Emporfum Park
which includes a Shopping Mall, an IKEA store and other building developments for
retailfcommaercial purposes.

Change of financial year end

At the Company's Board of Directors meeting held on 8 November 2017, the Board of
Directors decided to change the financial year end of the Company from 30 June to 31
December of each respective year.

Due to the change of financial year end from 30 June to 31 December, the Company's
comparative financial information presented in thess financial statements cover the &
month period from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas the curent period financial
information presented cover the year from 1 January 2018 to 31 Decamber 2018. The
reason for the change is the fact that the Company's shareholders' financial year end is 31
December. Therefore, the numbers related fo the results and cash flows of the
comparative period (6 months) as presented in these financial statements are not
comparable to the current year's figures (12 months).

2 Basis of preparation

The financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as adopted by the European Union
(EW), and the requirements of the Cyprus Companies Law, Cap. 113.

As of the date of the authorizafion of the financial statements, all International Financial
Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) that
are effective as of 1 January 2018 and are relevant to the Company's operations have
been adopted by the EU through the endorsement procedure established by the European
Commission.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements
are set out below in Note 4. Apart from the accounting policy changes resulting from the
adoption of IFRS 8 and IFRS 15 effective from 1 January 2018, these policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated (refer to Notes 3, 4
and 28). The principal accounting policies in respect of financial instruments and revenue
recognition applied till 31 December 2017 are presented in Note 28,
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2 Basls of preparation (continued)

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as
modified by the revaluation of investment property.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain
critical accounting estimates and requires management to exercise its judgment in the
precess of applying the Company's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgment or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates are
significant to the financlal statements are disclosed in Note 7.

3 Adoption of new or revised standards and interpretations

During the current year the Company adopted all the new and revised International
Financial Reperiing Standards (IFRS) that are relevant to its operatlons and are effective
for accounting periods beginning 1 January 2018. This adoption did not have a material
effect on the accounting policies of the Company.

4 Summary of significant aceounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statemenis
are set out below. Apart from the accounting policy changes resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 effective from 1 January 2018, these policies have been consistently
applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated. The principal accounting
policies in respect of financial instruments and revenue recognition applied till 31
December 2017 are presented in Note 28,

Revenue

Recognition and measurement

Revenue represents the amount of consideration to which the Campany expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring the promised services to the customer, excluding
amounts collected on behalf of third partles {for example, value-added taxes); the
transaction price. The Company includes in the transaction price an amount of variable
consideration as a result of rebates/discounts only to the extent that it is highly probable
that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue resognized will not occur
when the uncertainiy assccisted with the variable considaration Is subsequently resolved,

The Company recognises revenue when the parties have approved the contract (in
writing, orally or in accordance with other customary business practices ) and are
commitied to perform their respective obligations, the Company can ideniify each party’s
rights and the payment terms for the goods or services to be transferred, the contract has
commercial substance (i.e. the risk, timing or amount of the Company's future cash flows
la expected ta change as a resuli of the contract), if is probable that the Company will
collect the consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange for the services that will be
transfetred to the customer and when specific criterla have been met for each of the
Company’s contracts with customers,

(i) Income from rights for use of space

The income from rights for use of space is recognised on an accrual basis
according to the substance of the relevant adjusiments.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
(i) Leaseincome

Income arising on operating leases is recognised on a straight-line basis aver the
lease term.

Employee benefits

The Company and the amployees contribute to the Government Soclal Insurance Fund
based on employees' salaries. In addition, the Company operates a defined contribution
scheme the assets of which are held in a separate trustee-administered fund. The
scheme is funded by payments from ernployees and by the Company. The Company's
contributions are expensed as incurred and are included in staff costs. The Company has
no further payment obligafions once the contributions have been paid. Prepaid
contributions are recognized as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments s available.

Foreign currency translation
{i) Functional and presentation currency

liems included in the Company's financial statements are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the entity operates {"the
functional currency”). The financial staterents are presented in Euro (€), which is
the Company's functional and presentatlon currency.

(i)  Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency using the
exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the fransactions or valuation where items
are re-measured. Forelgn exchange gains and losses resulting from the
setilement of such transactions and from the translation at year-end exchange
rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Cuyrent and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity. in this case, the tax Is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income 1ax charge is cakulated on the basis of the tax laws enacted or
substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the country in which the Company
operates and generates taxable income. Management periodically evaluates positions
taken in tax retums with respect ta situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation. If applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation, it eatablishes
provision where appropriaie on the basis of amounts expected to be paid fo the tax
authorities.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax is recognised using the Jiability method, on tempaorary differences
arising between the tax bases of assefs and liabilities and thelr carrying amounts In the
financlal statements. However, defarrad income tax is not accounted for if It arises from
initizl recognition of an asset or liability in a fransaction other than a business combination
that at the time of transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply when the
related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred income tax liability is settled.

The defarred fax Rabliity in relation to investment property that Is measured at fair value is
determined assuming the property will be recovered entirely through sale,

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it Is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be ulilised,

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offsaet when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset current tax assets against current fax liabilities and when the defemad
income tax assets and labilities relate 1o Income taxes levied by the sama taxation
authority on the Company where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distribution to the Company's sharshokiers is recognised as a liability in the
financial statements in the year in which the dividends are appropriately authoriged and
are no longer at the discretion of the Company. More specifically, interim dividends are
recognised as a liability in the period in which these are authorised by the Board of
Directors and in the case of final dividends, these are recognised in the perfod in which

these are approved by the Company's shareholders.

Plant and equipment

All plant and aquipment are stated at historical cost less depreclation, Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of plant and equipment.

Depreciation on plant and equipment is calcilated using the siraight-line method to
allocate their cost to their residual values, over their estimated useful lives. The annual

depreciation rates are as follws:

%
Plant and machinary 10-20
Signs 18
Fumiture, fixtures and office equipment 1520
Computers 3313
Improvements on leasahold proparly 50
Ant works Nil
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued)

Plant and equipment {continued)

The assets' residugl values and usefil lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at
each balance sheet date.

An asset’s carrying amount is wiitten down immediately to its recoverable amount if the
asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Expenditure for repairs and maintenance of plant and equipment is charged to the profit or
loss of the year in which they were incurred. The cost of major renovations and other
subsequent expenditure are included in the carrying amount of the asset or recognized as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be i
maasured reliably.

Gains and losses on disposal of plant and equipment are determined by comparing
proceeds with carrying amount and are recognised in "other gainsilosses) — net” in profit
or loss.

Leases (rghts of use of space)

L eases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by
the lessor are classified as operating leases. Payments mads under operating leases (net
of any incentives received from the lessor) are charged to profit or loss on a straight-line
basis over the period of the lease.

Credit loss allowance is recognised using a simplified approach at lifetime ECL. The ECL
s determined in the same way as for financial assets measured at AC and recognised
through an allowance account to write down the raceivables’ net camying amount to the
present value of expected cash flows discounted at the interest rates Implicit in the finance
leases. The estimated future cash flows reflact the cash flows that may result from
obtaining and sefling the assets subject to the lease.

Rental income

Rental income arising on operating leases is recognised on a straight line basis over the
lease term.

Investment property

Investment property is held for long-term rental yields and capital appreciation and is not
occupiad by the Company. Investment property is carried at fair value, representing open
market value determined annually by the Company's management, after taking Into
consideration all relevant available Information, including valuations of independent
valuers, market conditions and other factors. Changes to fair value are recognised as
gains or losses in the income Staternent.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets - Classlfication

From 1 January 2018, the Company classifies its financial assels in the following
megasurement calegories:

. those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through OC! or through
profit or loss), and

. those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification and subsequent measurement of debt financial assets depends on: (i)
tha Company's business model for managing the related assets portfolio and (ii) the cash
flow characteristics of the assat. On [nitlal recognition, the Company may Irrevocably
designate a debt financlal asset that otharwise meets the requirements to be measured at
amortized cost or at FVOCI at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch that would otherwisa arise,

All other financial assets are classified as measured at FVTPL.

For asseis measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss
or OCI,

Financial assets - Racognition and derecognition

All purchases and sales of financial assets that require delivery within the time frame
established by regulation or market convention (“regular way” purchases and sales) are
recorded at trade date, which is the date when the Company camimits to defiver a financial
instrument. All other purchases and sales are recognized when the entity becomes a parly
to the contractual provisfons of the instrument.

Financial assets are derecognisad when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assels have expired or have been fransfermed and the Company has transfemred
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership. ‘

Financial assets - Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair vaiue plus, in the
case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition of tha financial esset. Transaction costs of
financial assets carried at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss. Falr value at initial
recognition Is best evidenced by the transaction price. A gain or loss on inifial recognition
is only recorded if there is a difference between fair value and fransaction price which can
be evidenced by other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or
by a valuation technique whose Inputs Include only data from observable markets.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
made! for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the assat. There are
three measurement categories into which the Company classifies its debt instruments:
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies {continued})

Finanelal assets - Measurement (continued)

. Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where
those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest are measured
at amortised cost, Inferest income from these financial assets is included in ‘other
income’. Aty gain or loss arising on derecognition is recognised directly in profit or
loss and presented in other gains/(losses) together with foreign exchange gains
and losses. Impairment losses are presented as separate line item in the income
statement. Financlal assets measured at amortised cost (AC) comprise: cash and
cash equivalents, bank deposits with original maturity over 3 months, trade
receivables and financial assets at amortised cost.

. FVOCI: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling
the financial assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interes, are measured at FVOCI. Movements In the carrying amount
are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses,
interest income and foreign exchange gains and losses which are recognised in
profit or loss. When the financial asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss
previously recognised in OCl is reclassified from equity to profit or loss and
recognised in other gains/(losses). Interest income from these financial assets is
included in other income. Foreign exchange gains and losses are presenfed in
other gains/(losses) and impairment expenses are presented as separate line item
in the income statement.

. FVTPL: Assels that do not meet the criterla for amortised cost or FVQCI are
measured at EVTPL. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at FVTPL s recognised in profit or loss and presented net within other
gainsi(losses) in the petiod in which it arises,

Financial assets — impairment ~ credit loss allowance for ECL

From 1 January 2018, the Company gasesses on 8 forward-looking basis the ECL for debt
instruments (including loans) measured at AC and FVOCI and with the exposure arising
from loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, The Company measures ECL
and recognises credit loss allowance at each reporting date. The measurement of ECL
reflects: (i) an unbiased and probability welghted amount that is determined by evaluating
a range of possible outcomes, (ii) time value of money and (jii) all reasenable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost and effort at the end of each
reporting period about past events, current condilions and forecasts of future conditions.

The carrying amount of the financial assets is reduced through the use of ah allowance
account, and the amount of the loss is recognised in the income statement within 'net
impairment losses on financial and contract assets'.

Debt instruments measured at AC are presented in the balance sheet nel of the allowance
for ECL.

For debt instruments at FVOCI, an allowance for ECL is recognised in profit or loss and it
affects fair value gains or losses recognised in OCI rather than the carrying amount of
those instruments.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Financial assets — Impalrment - credit foss allowance for ECL {continued)

Expected losses are recognized and measured according to one of fwo approaches:
general approach or simplified approach.

For trade recelvables including trade recelvables with a significant financing component
and contract assets and lease recelvables the Company applles the simplified approach
permitted by IFRS 9, which uses lifetime expected losses to be recoghised from initial
recognition of the financial assets.

For all other financial asset that are subject fo impairment under IFRS 8, the Company
applies general approach — thrae stage madel for impairment. The Company applies a
thres stage modal for impairment, based on changes in credit quality since inltial
recognition. A financial Instrument that is not credit-impaired on initiel recognition is
dlassified in Stage 1. Financial assefs in Stage 1 have their ECL measured at an amount
equal to the partion of lifetime ECL that results from default events possible within the next
12 months or until contractual maturity, if shorter ("12 Months ECL”"), If the Company
identifies a significant Increase in credit risk ("SICR”) since initial recognition, the asset is
transferred to Stage 2 and Its ECL is measured based on ECL on a lifetime basis, that is,
up until contraciual maturlty but considering axpected prepayments, if any (“Lifetima
ECL"). Refer to Note 6, Credlt risk section for a description of how the Company
determines when a SICR has occurred, If the Company determines that a financial asset
is credit-impaired, the asset is transferred to Stage 3 and its ECL is measured as a
Lifetime ECL. The Company definition of credit impaired assets and definition of default is
explained in Note 6, Credit rigk section,

Financlal assets « Reclassliflcation

Financial instruments are reclassified only when the business model for managing those
assets changes. The raclassification has a prospsctive effect and takes place from the
start of the first reporting period following the change.

Financlal assets — write-off

Financial assets are written-off, in whole or in part, when the Company exhausted all
praciical recovery efforts and has concluded that there is no reasonable expectation of
raecavery. The write-off represents a derecognition event. The Company may write-off
financial assats that are stiif subject to enfercement activity when the Company seeks to
recover amolnts that are contractually due, however, therae is no reasonable expectation

of recovery.
Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignlficant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafis. In the balance sheat bank overdrafis are shown
within borrowings in current liabilities. Cash and cash equivalents are carried at AC
because: (i) they are held for collection of contractual cash flows and those cash flows
represent SPPI, and (i) they are not designated at FVTPL.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Financial assets at amortised cost

These amounts generally arise from transactions outside the usual operating activities of
the Company. These are held with the objective to collect their contractual cash flows and
their cash flows represent solely payments of principal and interest. Accordingly, these are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less provisian for
impairment. Financial assets at amortised cost are classified as current assets if they are
due within one year or less (or In the normal operating cycle of the business if longen). If
not, they are presented as non-cumrent assets.

Interest income

Interest income from financlal assats at FVTPL is included in the other gains/(losses) - net
on these assets, Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assels
at FVOC calculated using the effective interest method Is recognised in the income
statement as "Other income”. Interest Income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financial assets
that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit - impaired financial assets — Stage 3
the effective interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance), for Stage 1 and Stage 2 — gross amount of financial
assefs.

Financlal liabilities — measurement categorles

Financial liabilities are initially recognised at fair value and classified as subsaquently
measured at amortised cost, except for () financial liabilities at FVTPL. this classification
is applied to derivatives, financial liabllities held for trading (e.g. short positions in
securities), contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business combination
and Gther financla! liabilities designated as such at Initial recognition and (ff) financial
guarantee contracts and loan commitments.

Borrowlings

Borrowings are recogniged initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently canied at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of fransaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interest method, unless they are
divectly attributable fo the acquisition, construction or preduction of a qualifying asset, in
which case they are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset. Borrawings are classified
as current fiabilities, unless the Company has an unconditional right to defer settlement of

the liability for at least twelve months afier the balance sheet date.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of the
loan to the extent that it is probable that some or all of the faciiity will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occurs. To the extent there Is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment (for liquidity services) and amortised over the period of the
facility 1o which it relates,

Borrowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract is extinguished (.e. when the obligation specified in the contract is discharged,
cancelled or expires). The difference between the carrying amount of a financial liability
that has been extinguished or transferred to another party and he consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or
loss as other income or finance costs.
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4 Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Borrowings (continued)

An exchange between the Company and its original lenders of debt instruments with
substantially different terms, as well as substantial modifications of the terms and
conditions of existing financial liabllifies, are accounted for as an extinguishment of the
original financial liability and the recognition of a new financiat liability. The terms are
substantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the new
terms, Including any fess paid net of any fees received and discounted using the ariginal
effective interest rate, is at least 10% different from the discounted present value of the
remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.

If an exchange of debt instrumentis or modification of terms is accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are recognised as part of the gai or loss on
the extinguishment, If the exchange or modification is not accounted for as an
extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred adjust the carrying amount of the liabillty and
are amorlised over the remaining term of the modified liability.

Modifications of liabifities that do not result in extinguishment are accounted foras a
change in estimate using a cumuiative catch up method, with any gain or loss recognised
in profit or loss, unleas the economic substance of the difference in carrying values s
attributed to & capital transaction with owners and is recognised directly to equity.

Borrawing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection with
the borrowing of funds, including interest on barrowings, amortisation of discounts or
premium relafing to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred in connection with
the arrangement of borrowings, finance lease charges and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency berrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs.

Botrowing costs that are directly aftributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset, being an asset that necessarily takes a substantial period of ime to
get ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as parl of the cost of that asset,
when it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits te the Company and

the cosis can be measured reliably.

Offsstting financlal instruments

Financiaf assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance
sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there
is an infantion to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the Jfability
simultaneously. The legafly enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and
must be enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,

insolvency or bankruptay of the Company or the sounterparty.

Share capital and share premium

Ordinary shares are classified as equily.

Incremental costs directly attribiitable fo the issue of new shares ara shown in equity as a
deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

(26)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

i Summary of significant accounting policles {continued)

Provislons

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of past events, it probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions
are not recognised for future operating losses.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected to be required
1o seftle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
fime value of money and the risks spaclfic to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Deferred income

Deferred income represents payments made by the various fenants for additional
construcion work and alterations made to the leased premisss and which are recognised
in the comprehensive income during the lease term.

Segmental analysis

The Company believes that there are no separate operating segments under IFRS8
'Operating Segments’ for which there is a discrete financial information for making
decisions on allocating resources and evaluating their performance. The Management of
the Company (Board of Direclors) (upper body for making operational decisions) take
dedisions for resource allocation and assessing their performance based on internal
repotts at Company level. Thesa reports are consisent with IFRS which were used for the
preparation of the financial statements. There is no additional information on the
performance of individual segments.

Comparatives

Due to the change of the financial year end from 30 June to 31 December, the Company's
comparative financial information presented in these financial statements cover the 6
months period from 1 July 2017 to 31 December 2017, whereas the current period
financial information presented cover the year from 1 January 2018 to 31 December 2018.
The reason for the changeis the fact that the Company's shareholders' financial year end
is 31 December. Thersfore, the numbers related to the results and cash fiows of the
comparative period (6 months) as presented In these financial statements are not
comparable to the current year's figures (12 months).

5 New accounfing pronouncements

At the date of approval of these financial statements a number of new standards and
amendments to standards and interpretations are effective for annual periads beginning
after 1 January 2018, and have not been applied in prepating these financial statements.
None of these s expected ta have a significant effect on the financial statements of the

Company.
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5 New accounting pronouncements

. IFRS 16 'Leases' (issued on 13 January 2016 and effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2019). The new standard sets out the principles for
the recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of leases. All leases
result In the lessee obtalning the right to use an asset at the start of the lease and,
if lease payments are made over time, also obtaining financing, Accordingly, IFRS
16 eliminates the classification of leases as either operating leases or finance
leases as is required by IAS 17 and, instead, infroduces a single lessee accounting
model. Lessees will be required to recognise: (a) assets and liabilities for all leases
with a term of more than 12 months, unless the undetlying asset is of low valus;
and (b) depreciation of lease assets separately from interest on lease liabilities in
the income statement. IFRS 16 substantially canvies forward the lessor accounting
raguirements in IAS 17. Accordingly, a lessor continues to classify its leases as
operating leases or finance leases, and to account for those two types of leases
differently. The Company is currently assessing the impact of the new standard on
its financial statements and as of the date of issue of these financial statements
the impact of the adoption of this standard is not known/ or reasonable estimabie.

. Amendments fo IFRS 9: Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation
(issued an 12 October 2017). For financial instruments which contain a
prepayment amount that may result In negative compensation, the Amendments
propose that such a financial asset would be eligible to be measured at amortised
cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, subject fo the
assessment of the business model in which it is held. The Company is currently
assassing the impact of the interpretation on its financial statements and as of the
date of issue of these financial statements the impact of the interpretation is not
known/ or reagonable estimable,

. Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8: Definition of materiality (issuad on 31 October
2018 and effective for annual periods beginning on ar after 1 January 2020). The
amendments dlarify the definition of material and how it should be applied by
including in the definition guidance that until now has featured elsewhere in IFRS.
In addition, the explanations accompanying the deflnition have been improved.
Finally, the amendments ensure that the definition of materlal is consistent across
all IFRS Standards. Information is material if omitting, misatating or obscuring it
could reasonably be expected fo influence the declslons that the primary users of
general purpose financial statements make on the basis of those financial
statements, which provide financial information about a specific reporting entity.
The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments on its financial
statements and as of the date of issue of these financial atataments the impact of
the amendments is not known/ or reasonable estimable.
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6 Financial risk management

{n Financial risk factors

The Company's activities exposs it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including fair value interest rate risk and cash flow Interest rate risk), credit risk
and liquidity risk.

The Company's fisk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial marikets and seeks to mintmise potential adverse effacts on the
Company's financial performance. Risk management is carried out by
Management under poficies approved by the Board of Directors. Management
identifies, svaluates and hedges financlal risks In close co-operation with the
Company's operating units. The Board provides written and / or oral principles for
overall risk managernent, as well as written policies and / or oral covering specific
areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, and invesiment of excess lquldity.

. Market risk

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

As the Company has no significant interest-bearing assets, the Company's income and
operating cash flows are substantially independent of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from long-term borrowings. Borrowings issued at
variable rates expose the Company fo cash flow interest rate risk. Borrowings at fixed
rates expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk. All borrowings are issued at
variable rates.

At 31 December 2018, if interest rates on Euro-denominated borrowings had been 0,5%
higherlower with all other variables held constant, post-tax profit for the period ended 31
Dacember 2018 would have been €357.074 (2017: €162.253) lowerfigher, mainly as a
result of higher/lower interest expense on floating rate bormrowings.

The Company's management monitors the interest rate fluctuations on a continuous basis
and acts accordingly.

» Credit risk

Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, deposits with banks and financial
institutions, as well as cradit exposures to tennants, including outstanding lease
receivables.

(i)Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis. For banks and finandial institutions, only thosa
that are highly rated by the Board of Directors are accepted. Management assesses the
credit quality of the users of space, taking into account its financial position, past
experience and other factors.
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6 Financial risk management (eontinusd)

n Financial risk factors {continued)

s Credit risk (continued}
(i)iImpairment of financial asseis

The Company has three types of financial assets that are subject to the expected credit
loss model;

. trade receivables for the grant of use of space
° financial assets at amoriised cost {other receivables)

s cash and cash equivalents
Trade recelvables and iease recelivables

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified appreach to measuring expected credit losses
which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade receivables.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade and lease receivables have been groupad
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The Company defines
default as a situation when the debtor ls more than 80 days past due on its contractual
payments,

The expected loss rates are hased on the payment profiles of salas over a period of 12
manth before 31 December 2018 or 1 January 2018 respectively and the corresponding
historical credit losses experienced within this period. The historical loss rates are
adjusted to reflect current and forward-ooking information on macroeconomic factors
affecting the abliity of the customers to settle the receivables. The Company concluded
that an adjustment of historical dafzult rates Is not required as it is immaterial.

Trade receivables are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery.
Indicators that there is no reascnable expectation of recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment plan with the Company, and a failure to make
contractual payments for a period of greater than 120 days past due.

Impairment losses on trade and lease recelvables are presented as net impaiment losses
within operating profit. Subsequent recovarles of amounts previously writien off are

credited against the same line iten.
Pravious accouniing policy for impairment of trade receivables

In the prior year, the impairment of trade and lease raceivables was assessed based on
the incurred loss madel. A provision for impairment of lease receivables was established
when there was objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of receivables. Significant financial difficuitics
of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter bankruptey or delinquency in payments
were consldered indicators that the lease recelvabla was Impaired. The amount of the
provision was the difference between the carrying amount and the recoverable amount,
being the present value of estimated fulure cash flows, discounted at the effective interest

rate.
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8 Financial risk management {continued)

{i) Financial risk factors (continued)

o Credit rigk (continuad)

The carrying amount of the asset was reduced through the use of an allowance account,
and the amount of the loss was recognlsed in profit or loss within ‘net impairment losses
on financial and contract assets’ (2017: recognised within administrative expenses). When
a lease receivable was uncollectible, it was written off against the allowance account for
trade receivables. Subsequent receveries of amounts previously writien off were credited
against ‘selling and marketing costs' in profit or loss.

Other financisf assots at amoriisad cost
Other financial assets at amortised cost include other receivables.

The Company considers the probability of default upon initial recognition of asset and
whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis
throughout each reporting period. To assess whether there is a significant increase in
credit risk the company compares the risk of a default occutring on the assat as at the
reporting date with ihe risk of default as at the date of initial recognifion. It considers
available reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking information. Especially the
following indicators are incorporated:

° internal credit rating
° external credit rating (as far as availabla)
. actual or expected significant adverse changes in business, financial or economic

condlitions that are expected to cause a significant change to the borrower's ability
to meet its obligations

* actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of the

borrowerfcounter party

. significant increases In credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
borrower/counterparty

. significant changes in the value of the collateral supporting the obligation or in the

quality of third-party guarantees or credit enhancements

) significant changes in the expected performance and behaviour of the
barrower/counterparty, inciuding changes in the payment status of counterparty in
the group and changes in the operafing results of the borrower.

Regardless of the analysls above, a significant increase in credit risk is presumed if a
debtor is more than 30 days past due in making a contractual payment.

A default on a financlal asset is when the counterparty fails to make contractual payments
within 120 days of when they fall due.
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L] Financial risk management {continued)

(3] FInancial risk factors {continued)

e Credit risk (continued)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable expectation of recovery, such
as a debtor fafling to engage in a repayment plan with the company, The Company
catagorises a loan or receivable for write off when a debtor fails to make contractual
payments greater than 120 days past due. Where loans or receivables have been written
off, the Company continues to engage in enforcement activity to attempt to recover the
receivable due. Where recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or foss,

The Company usas three categories for loans, receivables, other receivables debt
securities at FVOCI which reflect their credit risk and how the loss provision is determined
for each of those categories. These intemnal credit risk ratings are aligned to external
credit rating companies, such as Standard and Poor, Moody’s and Fitch.

A summary of the assumpiions underpinning the Company's expected credit loss model is
as follows:

[Category Company definition of|Basis for recognition |Basis for calculation
category of expacted credit of Interest revenue
loss provision
{Parforming Counterparties have a |Stage 1: 12 month Gross cairying
low risk of default and a|expected losses. amount

tstrong capacity to meet {Where the expecied
contractual cash flows |lifetime of an asset is
less than 12 months,

expacted losses are
measured at fts
axpected lifefime.

Underperforming |Counterparties for Stage 2: Lifetima Gross carrying
which there is a expected losses lamount
significant increase in
credit risk; as

significant increase in
credit risk is presumed
if interast andlor

principal repayments
are 30 days past due
(see abave in more
detail)
iNon-performing Interest and/or principal |Stage 3: Lifetima Amontised cost
expected losses carrying amount {net
of credit allowance)

Asset is written off INone

32)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

6 Financial risk management (continued)

H Financial risk factors (continued)

. Credit risk (continued)

Over the term of receivables the Company accounts for its credit risk by appropriately
providing for expecied credit losses on a timely basis. In calculating the expacted credit

loss rates, The Company considers historicat loss rates for each category of customars,

and adjusts for forward looking macroeconomic data.

No slgnificant changes to estimation techniques or assumptions were made during the
reporting period.

Cash and cash equlvalents
Cash and cash equivalents are subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS g, the

identified impairment loss was immaterial. No cash and cash equivalents were written off

during the year.
Trade receivables

Trade receivabiles are subject to the impairment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial.

Other receivables

Other receivables are subject to the impaimment requirements of IFRS 9, the identified
impairment loss was immaterial. No other recelvables were written off during the year.

Net impairment gains/(losses) on financial assets at amortised cost

During the year, losses recognised In profitloss were in relation to specific impaired frade

receivables amounting to €207.318.

Forthe

periad from

Yaar endad 1 July 2017
3

to 31

Decemhber December

2018 2017

€ €

Impaiment losses (Note 11) 219.150 4,335
Reversal of previous impaiment [osses {11.832) -
Net impairment losses on financial and contract assets 207318 4338
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6 Financial risk management {continued)

{n Financial rigk factors {continued)

. Credit risk {continued)
Credit quality of financial assets at 37 Decembaer 2017

The credit quality of financials assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be
assessed by reference to external credit ratings (if applicable) or to historical information
about counterparty default rates:

Forthe
period from
1.July 2017
to 31
Decamber
2017
€
Counterparties without external credit rating
Group 1 266,350
Group 2 — 436,260
TOTAL 02.7
Fully performing other receivables
Group 3 §578.861
Group 4
TOTAL —M
Cash and bank balances
Caai 1.62%,799
TOTAL 1,621,799

Group 1 — exdsting customers {more than 6 months) with no defaults in the past.

Group 2 — existing custorners {more than 6 months) with some defaults in the past. All
defaults were fully recovered.

Group 3 ~ other receivables

Group 4 — companies within the group, parent entlty, commeon control companies and
assoclates with ho defaulis In the past.

None of the loans and receivables from related parties is past due or impaired.
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6 Financial risk management (continued)

{i) Financlal risk factors (continuad)

® Liquidity risk

The table below analyses the Company's financial fiabilities into relavant maturity
groupings based an the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the confractual undiscounted cash flows.
Balances dus within 12 months {with the exception of borrowings) equal their carrying
balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

Less Betwaen

than1 “1and2 Betwaon2 QOver

yoar yoars  to 5 yaars years
€ € € €
At 31 Decomber 2017

Borrowinge 6,332.345 7.212.644 25.117.447 60,713,732

Trade and other payables {excluding deferred

Income) 4370757 - - :
10703102 7,212,844 26117447 BQ713.792

Botween Batween
Lessthan 1and2 2t0 & Overb
1 year years years years
€ € € L]
Al 31 December 2018

Borowings 0.000.430 3475488 29.342.971 57.288.893
Trade and other payablss {exciuding deferrad
Income) 4.138.827

12147257 2476400 20342071 ST.209.883
° Einancial instruments by category as at 31 December 2017:

Loans and
recaivables
€
31 December 2017

Trade and other receivables 1.284.580
Cash and bank bafanoes 1,621,925
Total 208,508
Liabilities af
amarlised
oost
€

Trade end other payables (exdluding stakutory
Habllitias) 6,220,121
Total 220,121

Prudent fiquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and
marketable securities, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of
committed credit facilities and the ability to close out market positions. The
management maintains flexibility in funding by maintaining gvailability under
committed credit fines,

Management monitors rolling forecasts of the Company's liquidity reserve
{comprises undrawn borrowing facility (Note 21} and cash and cash
equivalents (Note 19)) on the basis of expected cash flow. Based on their
experience, management considers that the bank overdraft will continue to be
renewed normally on an annual basis.
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(if)

(i)

Financial risk management {continued)

Capital risk management

The Company's ohjectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's
ability to continue as a going concem in order to provide returns for shareholders
and benefits for other stakeholders and to maindain an optimal capital structirre to
reduce the cost of capltal.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new
shares or sell assets to reduce debt.

The Company monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio. This ratic is
calculated as net debt divided by tatal capital. Net debt Is calculated as total
borrowings {including 'current and non-gurrent borrowings' as shown in the balance
sheet) less cash and cash equivalents, Total capital is calculated using ‘equity’ as
shown in the balance shest plus net debt.

The gearing ratios at 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017 were as follows:

31 Decambher 31 December

2018 2017
€ €
Total borrowings (Note 21) 89.385.870 82.130.767
Less: cash and cash equivalants (Note 19) {1.467,308) {1,621,825)
Nat debt 87.518.3M1 80.608.842
Total equity 85.928.1 73.247,025
Total capital as deflned by management 173,844,493  _153.755.867
Gearing ratlo 51% 529%
Fair value estimation

The carrying value less impairment provision of trade receivables and payables are
assumed to approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for
disclosure purposes is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash flows
at the current market interest rate that Is availahle for similar financlal instruments.
Refer to Note 17 for disclosure of fair value far Investment Properties catried at fair
value.
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7 Critical accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements raquires the use of accounting estimates which,
by definition, will seidom equal the actual results. Management also needs to exercise
judgement in applying the company's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are belleved to
be reasonable under the dircumstances.

()] Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

The Company makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resuling accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual
results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a
material adiustment to the canying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are discussed below.

» Impairment of financlal assets

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on assumptions about
risk of default and expected loss rates. The Company uses judgement in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the company's past history, existing market conditions
as well as forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in the Note 6
Credit risk section.

. Income taxes

Significant judgment is required in determining the provision for income
taxes. There are transactions and calculations for which the ultimate tax
datermination is uncertain, The Company recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from
the amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the
current and deferred incorne tax assets and fiabliities in the period In which
such determination is made.

. Fair value of Investment property

The fair value of investment property Is determined using valuation

techniques which entail a significant degree of judgement and uncertainty.
Refer to Note 17 for the relevant disclosure of valuation technique used for
the determination of the fair value of the Company's investment properties.

. Related party transactions
In the normal course of business the Company enters inta transactions with
its related parties. Judgement is applied in determining if transactions are

priced at market or non-market rates, where there is no active market for
such transactions.
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8 Rights for use of space and other revenue

For the
period from
Year ended 1 July 2017
3 to 31
Docember December
2018 2017
€ €
Rights for use of space 10.797.718 5.683.094
Leass income — 870,651
Total revenue from contracts with customers J1.458.369 _6.060.813
9 Other Income
For tha
period from
Year ended 1 duly 2017
M to 31
December Decamber
2018 2017
€ €
Interest income:
Financial assets at amortised costs:
Bank balancea 30.488 5.740
Total inlarest income calculated using effective interest rate method far
financial assets at amortised cost 30.486 9.740
Other operafing income 263,187 122,590

283673 132.330

10  Other gains - net

For the
paricd from
Year ended 1 July 2017
31 to 31
Decembsr December
2018 2017
€ €
Invesiment property:
Falr value gains {(Note 17) 8.216,902 -
Total other gains - net 8.218.902 -
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11 Expenses by nature

For the

period from

Year 1 July 2017

ended 31 to 31

Decembeor December

2018 2017

€ €

Depreciation (Note 16) 8.399 6.897
Insurancs 2.286 9.491
Audifors’ remineration 26.500 23.000
Trade receivablas - impaiment charge for receivables (Nots 6) 219.150 4.335
Other expanses 2.853 2924
Professional fees 100.042 106.553
Directors' fees 2.600 1.250
Bank charges 4.954 60,896
Common axpanses 376327 143.831
Licanses ahd taxea 29,781 10.519
Wirite off of recelvables 3.304 47.573
Management fees 483,761 211,191
Total adminlstrative expenses ):268.747 637,060

The total fees charged by the Company’s statutory auditor for the statutory audit of the
financial statements of the Company for the period ended 31 December 2018 amounted
to €26.500 {six months period ended 31 December 2017: €23.000). The total fees
charged by the Company’s statutory auditor for the year ended 31 December 2018 for tax
advisory setvices amounted to €23.800 {six months period ended 31 Decembet 2017:
€49.250 ) and for other assurance services €5.144 (six months period ended 31
December 2017: €1.208).

12  Staff costs

For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017

31 to 31

December Dacember

2018 2017

€ €

Wages and salaries 311.980 169.488

Social Insurence costs 84.045 17.541
Provident fund contributions 21.009 1.577
Transferrad 1o commeon expenses {387.834) {188.604)
Average number of staff employed during the year 18 _14
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13 Finance costs

Interest and finance charges paid/payable for finandial fiabilities not at fair
value through proftt or logs:

Bank barrowings

Overdue iaxation

Loans from related parties {Nole 26(v))

Total interest expenae
Net foreign exchange loss/(gain)
Total finance costs

14 Income tax expense

Current tax:
Cormpaoration tax
Defence contribution
Under provislon of prior years' taxes:
Corporation tax
Defence contrbution

Total current tax

Deferred tax (Nota 22):
Origination and revereal of temporary differences

Tolal deferred tax

ncome lax expenss

For the

period from

Yaar ended 1 July 2017
k| to 31
December DPacembar
2018 2017

€ €

1.956.492 1.482.128
6,692 1.689

— 226401 __283.360
2.187.486 1.767.188
= {174)

2,187,486 1.767.012
Forthe

psried from

Yoar ended 1 July 2017
to 31

December December
2018 2017

E €

608,992 209 668
15.080 8.499
§7.374 91.031
8240

892678  __ 405438

1.148.836 247.

1.146.83 247.000
1.8&&15 §§g.438
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14  Income tax expense (confinued)

The tax on the Company's profit before tax differs from the theoretical amount that would
arise using the applicable tax rate as follows:

For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017

k| to 31

Decamber December

2018 2017

[ €

Profit befara tax 14.521.712 3.788.071

Tax calculated at tha applicable corporation tax rate of 12,5% 1.816.214 473,634

Tax effact of expenses not deduciible for tax purposes 53.276 30.166

Tax effect of allowances and incomea not subject to tax {166.473) (1.224)

Spedial contribution for dafence 27.313 14.738
Difference betwaen capital gains lax rate and income tax rate and affact of

inflation §6.911 35.093

Prior year laxes 57,374 91,031

Income tex charge 1242816 652438

The Company is subject io income tax on taxable profits at the rate of 12,5%.
As from tax year 2012 brought forward losses of only five years may be utilised.

From 1 January 2009 onwards, under certain conditions, interest may be exempt from
income tax and be subject only to special confribution for defence at the rata of 10%;
increased to 15% as from 31 August 2011, and to 30% as from 29 April 2013.

15 Earnings per share

The basic and fully diluted eamings per share are calculated by dividing the profit
attributable o the Company's shareholders by the weighted average number of issusad
shares during the year.

For the
period from
Year ended 1 July 2017
M to 31
Bacember Decsmber
Nota 2018 2017
€
Profit for the year atiributable to shareholders 12.679.097 3.136.

Weighted average number of issued shares 20 100.000.000  100.000.0

Basle and diluted eamings per share - cents —268 304

(1)
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17  Investment property

For the

period from

1 July 2017

3 o 314

Decembear Dacember

2018 2017

€ €

At beginning of yearipetiod 174.734.984  170.345.648
Additions 14.898.104 4,389,348
Fair value gains (Note 10) 6.216.802 -
Atend of year/period 195.860.000 174734904

The investment properties are generally valued annually at fair value comprising open-
market value based on valuations, by an independent, professionally qualified valuer, Fair
vaiue Is based in active market process, adjusted, if necessary, for any differences in the
nature, location or condition of the specific asset. If the information is not available, the
Company uses aitemative valuation methods such as recent prices or less active markets
or discounted cash fiow projections. These valuations are prepared annually by
independent valuers and reviewed and adopted by management, Changes in fair value
are recorded in profit or loss and are included in “other gains-net’.

The Company's investment property is measured at fair value. The Company holds one
class of Investment property being the Shacolas Emporium Park which includes &
Shopping Mall, an IKEA store, Annex 3 and Annex 4.

The following table analyses investment property carried at fair value, by valuation
method. The different levels have been defined as follows:

= Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level
i)

s Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset ar liabllity, either directly (that Is, as prices) or indirectly (that is, derived from
prices) {Level 2).

! Inputs for the asset or liabifity that are not based on observable market data (that

is, unobservable inputs) (Level 3).
The Company has classified its Investment properly in Level 3 of the hierarchy,

Cyprus Shopping 31 Dacomber 1 December
Mall

2048 2017
€ € €
Fair value hlerarchy 3 3 3
Opening Falr Value 174.734.994 174.734.904 170.345.848
Asset under construction {1) 14,808,104 14,898,104 4380348
Gains from fair vahze
adjustrents on Investment
property 8.216.602 8.216.902 -

Felf valus at 3t Docomber ,JOS850000 . JO6830000 174734804

Bank borrowings are secured on the Company's investment property for €86.000.000 (31
December 2017: €66.000.000) (Note21).
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17  Investment property (continued)

(1) For the six months period ended 31 December 2017, Investment Property includes an
amount of €4.792.994 which relates lo cosls incurred for the expansion of the Mall of
Cyprus. Investment property under construction for the expansion of the Mall of Cyprus as
at 31 December 2017 was measured at cost as per |AS 40, and together with the fair
value of €1688.942.000 amounted to the total value of €174.734.994. Cummulstive costs
incurred for the expansion as at 31 December 2018 amounted to €19,691.088. Finance
cost amounting to €433.621 was capitalised during the year end 31 December 2018 (31
December 2017: €40.238).

Valuation processes

The Company's investment properties ware valued by management as at 31 December
2018. As part of the process, the management took into account external valuation
prapared as at 31 December 2018 by indepenent professionally qualified valuers
Landtourist Valuations LLC, wha hold a recognised relevant professional qualification and
have recent experience in the locations and segments of the investment properties valued.
For all investment properiies, their current use equates to the highest and baest use. The
Company's finance department reviews the valuations performed by the independent
valuers for financial reporting purposes. Discussions of valuation processes and resulis
are held between the CFO, Management, and the independent valuers at least once every
year. At each financial year end the finance department:

. vetifies all mafor Inputs to the independent valuation report

. assesses property valuation movements when comparad to the prior year valuation
report; and

. holds discusskins with the independent valuer.

Msanagement has considered the key essumptions and they have condluded In a fair value
gain of tha investment property value of €6.216.902.

nformation ahout falr value measursment using significant
unohservable Inputs {Levsl 3) - 31 December 2018
’ Terminal

Valuation capitalisation Revenue in Revenue
Property Valuation technique Discount rate rato year 1 growth
€ % % €
Income
approach -
Discounted
Cyprus 185.850.000 cach flows 4-10 4-8  12.582.040

Information about fair value measurement using significant
unchservahble Inputs (Level 3) - 31 Desember 2017

Terminal
Valuation capltalisation Revanue In Revenue
Property Valuation (1) technlgque Discount rate rate yoar 1 growth
€ % % [ ]
Income
approach -
Discountad
Cyprus 169.642.000 cash flows 4-10 4-8 10084132
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17  Investment property {(continued)

Sonsltivity of managameant’s esfimaies — 31 Dacembor 2018
Changa in discount rate

0,50% 0,00% 0,50%
-0,60% 208.454.058 207,2689.878 207.740,199
Cyprus Shopping Mall Changie In cap rate 0,00% 207.694.288 185.8560.000 206,983,368
0,50% 208.942.080 205,786,651 208,234,088

Change in discount rate

,50% 0,00% 0,50%
«10,00% 187.908.808 171.851.210 183.007.888
Cyprus Shopping Mall Change In revenue 0,00% 202.100.406 186.860.000 181.630-344
10,00% 200.958.260 210.805.176 215.448.732
SensHivity of managament's estimates ~ 21 Decemher 2017
Change In discount rate
0,50% 0,00% 0,50%
«,E0% 170.835.200 170.541.684 170.248.862
Cyprus Shopplng Mall - Changa in cap rate 8,00% 170.234.405 169.942.000 169.650.266
0,50% 169.639.568 160.348.373 169.067.825
Change In discount rate
-0,50% 0,00% 0,50%
~14,00% 167.010.303 161.590.333 162.100.880
Cyprus Shopping Mall Change In revanua 0,00% 178,610,228 160.942.000 170.229.153
10,00% 194,717.960 194.658.009 196.466.0601

A change in the vacancy rate by 5%, i.e. the occupied spaces will be at 95%, will lead to a
decrease of the faiy value from the base scenario by €8.584.498, ie leading to a fair value
of €187.265.502 at 31 December 2018.

Revenues are derived from a large number of tenants and no single tenant or group under
common control contributes more than 25% of the Company's revenues.

There are inter-relationships between unobservable inpuls. Increase/Decrease in the
rental income per square meter rasults in higherflower fair value. Increaseldecrease in
rental yield results in lowerfhigher fair value. For investment property under construction,
increases in construction costs that enhance the property's features may result in an
increase in future rental values, An increase in the future rental income may be linked with
higher costs. If the remaining lease term increases the yield may decrease.

Valuation techniques underlying management's estimation of falr value

The valuation was determined using discounted cash flow projections based on significant
unobservable inputs. These inputs include:

Future rental cash inflows  based on the actuat location, type and quality of the
properties and supported by the terms of any existing lease,
other contracts or external evidence such as current market
rents for similar properties;

Discount rates reflecting current market assessments of the uncertainty in
the amount and timing of cash fiows;

Estimated vacancy rates based on current and expected future market conditions
after expiry of any curent lease
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17  Investment property (confinued)

Maintenance costs including necessary investments to maintain functionality of
the property for its expected useful {ife;

Capitalisation rates based on actual location; size and quality of the properties
and taking into account market data at the valuation date;

Terminal value taking info account assumptions regarding malntenance

costs, vacancy rates and market rents.

For Cyprus land and bufidings with a total carrying amount of €195.850.000, the valuation
was determined using discounted cash flow projections. Properties valued using the
discounted cash flows model take into account future rental values,vacant spaces and
maintenance costs discounted to the present value using an estimated discount rate.
These values are adjusted for differences in the market condltions such as demand and
finance affecting market sales. The most significant input into this valuation approach is
license fees and discount rates.

During 2017, the Company commenced the project for the expansion of The Malt of
Cyprus by about an additional area of 6000 m2, which will be used for retail, entertainment
and cultural purposes in order ta meet the demands of its customers/visitors and also
increase the varlety of offetings al the mall. The first phase of the project was completed
on 28 March 2019 and most of the spaces have already been leasad out. The second
phase which will be completed in July 2019, will see the project almost taking its final form,
with more stores and existing shops fransfered in new venues. With the expansion, about
an additional 300 parking places shall be created as well.

(48)




The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc

18 Financial assets

(a) Trade receivables

For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017

M 1o 31

December Desember

2018 2017

€ €

Current assets

Trade raceivables 1.689.389 984,036
Less: loss allowance of trade receivables {488.638) (281317
Trade recelvables — nat L2026 702719

() Fair value of trade recelvables

Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, thelr canying amount is
considered to be the same as their fair value.

{i) Impairment and risk exposure

Information about the current year impalrment of trade receivables and the company’s
exposure to credit risk can be found in Mote 6.

Prior year impairment of trade receivables:
As of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of €266.359 were fully performing.

Trade receivables that are less than four months past due are not consldered impaired. As
of 31 December 2017, trade receivables of €436.360 were past due but not impaired,
These relate to a number of independent customers for whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade receivables is as follows:

Far the
period from
1 July 2017

o 31
December
2017

[

Up to 3 months 159,983

310 6 months 276.377
" 136.360

The maximum exposure fo credit fisk at the balance sheet date is the carrying value of
trade receivables.
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18  Financial assets (continued)

The carnrying amounts of the Company's frade receivables are denominated in the
following currencies:

For the

period from

Year endad 1 July 2017

k| to 31

December December

2018 2017

€ €

Euro - functional and preseniafion currency 1,201,261 702718

1.201.281 702.718

(b) Financlal assets at amortised cost

Financial assets at amoriised cost include the following debt investments:

For the
period from
Year ended 1 July 2017
3t to 31
December December
2018 2017
£ €
Current
Other Receivables 391.545
Accrued Income 77.602
Total cument 468.147
Non-Currant
Other receivables 125,000 - -
Financial assets at amortised cost - net —ti1d
{D) Non-current financial assets at amoilised cost
All non current financial assets at amorfised costs are due within five years from the
balance shest date.
(i) Current financial assets al amortised cost
Due to the short-term nature of the current financial assets at amortised cost, their
cafrying amoint is considered to be the same as their fair value.
The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets at amortised cost are
denominated in the following currendies:
For the
period from
Year ended 1 Jduly 2017
3 to 31
Decembar Dacember
2018 2017
€ €

Euro - functional and presentation currency 594.147
594,147 -
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18  Financial assets {continued)

(i) Impairment and risk exposure

Note & sets out information about the impairment of financial assets and the company’s

exposure to credit risk.

18  Cash and cash equivalents

Cash at bank and in hand
Bank daposiis

statement of cash flows:

Cash and bank balances
Less:
Bank overdrafts {Note 21)

M a1
Decemhar Decernber
2018 2017

€ €

912 1.411.741
_1466.308 __510.184
1&7.308 1|621 l225

Cash, cash equivalents and bank overdrafts include the following for the purposes of the

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities:

Opening Balance { January 2018
Cash llows:

Proceeds from borrowings
Rapayment of princial
Repayment of inferesi

Interest expense

Non-caeh changes:

Falr velue gainafosses
Capitafisallon of borrawing costs
Commitment and commiseion fees

Closing Balance 31 Decomber 2018

For the
period from
Year endoad 1 July 2017
M to31
December Decemnber
2018 2017
€ €
1.487.308 1.621.925
{1.104.807) -
362,401 1,621,925
Total
iabllitles
Loans from from

Bank related  financing

Bnmmhg; paries  molivitles

€

€

07.446.981 14.683.788 82.130.767

18485581  1.550.464 20.045.046
{4.178.985) (9.338.288} (13.515.253)
{3.248,889) - (3.248,863)
3008783 22640 3325194

(1.143.301) - {1.143.301)

301218 132408 433821
—253.362

253.362 .

2

81.017.006 _ 7,263,768 88.280.772
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18  Cash and cash equlivalents {continued)

Opening Balance at 1 July 2017
Gash flows:

Proceeds from borrowings
Repayment of princlpal
Repaymenl of interast

Interest expansa

Non-cash changes:
Capitalisation of borrowing cosls
Payments on behalf
Capiiallaation of arangement faes for new loan
Commitmeni feas

Defamed Inlerest

Closing Balance 31 Decembar 2017

20 Share capital

AL July 2017/31 December 2017 and 31 Decamber
2018

paid.

21  Borrowings

Current

Bank overdrafis {Note 18)

Bank borrowings

Borrowings from parent enfity (Note 26(v))
Bommowings from related party (Note 26{v))

Non-current
Bank borrowinge
Borrowings from ultimate sharaholder (Note 26(v))

Total borrowings

Maturity of non-current borrowings
Between 1 and 2 years

Between 2 and 5 years

Over § years

Tolal
Ezbilltles

Loans frovm from
Bank refated  finandng

Bonuwlnu: partiss  activilles
€

€

66.943.582 11.738.827 78.0080.508

2618322 4821578  7.630.900
(1.740.338) (2215.020) (3.055.358)

(1.289.661)

- (1.269.661)

1.481.128 283,969  1.764.497

- 40.238 40236

(83.304) (83.204)

40.012) - 4002)
67.508 - 7608
8365 - 6.985

87446.081 _14.683.788 _82.130.
—_—tm—, s e

Nymbar of Share
shares capital
€

190000000 50000000

The total authorized number of ordinary shares is 171 000 000 shares (31 December
2017: 171 000 000 shares) with a par value of €0,50 per share, All Issued shares are fully

M
December
2018

€

1.104.807
8.131.368
2.326.797

1,862,329
10.426,398

75.885.641
—3.074,840
28,860,281

80.385.679

8,663.416
22,559,190
50,747,667

78.960,281

3
Dacember
2017

€

3.424.3%0
10.627.246

1,114,303
15 a7

64.022.652
28422268

56,864,889
82,130,767

4.483.397
17.721,186
44,760,305
66,054,888
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21 Borrowings (continued)

The Company has three loan faclfities with banking institutions amounting to
€100.750.000.

The first one with a current balance of €60.348,327 bears Interest at the Business Bank
rate plus a margin of 0,95% which was amended on 13 February 2018 to 3 months
Euribor plus 3,65% and is repayable on 30 May 2030.

As a result the above modification on the facility, a profit amounting 1o € 1.143.301 has
been regagnised in finance costs.

The second facility represents a loan of €10.000.000 which has been secured in the past
and which was increased to €18.000.000 in February 2017 for the purposes of the mall
expansion. On 21 September 2017, the loan was re-approved and the loan advances
begun along with the start of the mall expansion. The funds will be obtained in franches
once the constructor certificates are issued by the contractor. Up to 31 December 2018,
the Company had drawn €12.150.406. The loan bears interest at the business Bank rate
plus margin 1,20% which was amended on 13 February 2018 to 3 months Euribor plus
3,90% and is repayable on 30 May 2032,

On 15 March 2018, the Company secured a new loan facility amounting to €8.750.000
which hears Interest at the rate of 3 months Euribor plus 3,75% and is repayable on 12
Mairch 2032,

On 31 August 2017, the Company secured harrowings from related party (Atterbury
Europe B.V). The loan is unsecured, bears interest at the rate of 4,5% and is repayable
in 4 years from the date of the first advance (31 August 2017). The Interest charged in
the year amounted to €132.404 which was capitalized as part of investment propesty as
at 31 December 2018, The loan was obtained for the purposes of the malt expansion.
The loan facility amount is €7.000.000 and funds will be obtained in tranches once the
Construction Cerlificates are issued by the Contractor on sight. Up to 31 December
2018, the Company had drawn €2.902.000.

The bank loans are secured as follows:

(i) By 1st mortgage on the Company's land and buildings (Note 17) for €74,000.000
(2017: €74.000.000).

(i) By 2nd mortgage on the Company's land and buildings (Note 17) for €12.000.000
(2017: €12.000.000).

(i) By the assignment of €86.000.000 from tha rights of use of space in the Shacolas
Eraporium Park,

(iv) By corporate guarantees from parent company for the amount of €108.500.000
(31 December 2017: €98.000.000) (Note 26 (vi)).

(vy By corporate guarantee from The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc for the amount of
€06.,500.000 (31 December 2017: €86.000.000) (Note 26 (vi)).

(vl By floating charge of €86.000.000 on the assets of The Mall of Cyprus (MC) Plc.

(vily  Atterbury Cyprus Limited guaranteed the loans of the Company for the amount of
€10.500.000.
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21  Borrowings (continued)

The weighted average effective interest rates at the balance sheet date were as follows:

L

Decembar

2018

%

Bank borrowings 4,17
Borrowings from parent entity (Nota 26(v)) 4,38
Borrowings from related parlies (Note 26(v)) 4,38
Borrowings from ulfimate shareholder (Note 26(v)) 4,50

For the
period from
1 July
2017 to
Decamber
2017

%

4,56
4,47
447
4,50

The Company's bank borrowings and bank overdrafts are arranged at floating rates,

Borrowings at floating rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk.

The exposure of the Company's borrowings to interest rate changes and the contractual

repricing dates at the balance sheet dates are as follows:

3
December
2018

€

6 months or less 89,385.679

The Company has the following undrawn borrowing facilifles:

k]|

December

2018

€

Floating rate:
Explring within ane year 5.804.244

The carrylng amounts of borrowings approximate their fair value.

31
December
2017

€

82 767

30 June
2017
€

17.381.878

The earrying amounts of the Company's borrowings are denominated in the following

currencies:

k1
December
2018

€

Euro - functional and presentation currency 86.385.679

30 June
2017
€

82.130.767
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22  peferred income tax liabilities

The gross movement on the deferred income tax account is as follows:

At beginning of year/period
Charged ta profit or loss (Note 14)

At end of yeariperiod

For the

period from

1 July 2017

3 to 31
December Decomber
2018 2017

€ €

17.253.304 17.006.394
1.148.936 247,000

18,402,330 17.253.304

The movement in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the period, without taking into
congideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as follows:

Deferrod tax fiabllities

At 1 July 2017
Charged to:
Prafit or loss {Note 14)

At 31 Decamber 20171 January 2018

Chargag to;
Profit or loss (Note 14)

Al 31 Decamber 2013

23  Trade and other payables-non current

Operating lease advances
Doferrad Income
Cash guarantee

Difference:
batween Fair value
depreciation and galns on
woor and tear  Invesiment

allowance propetias Total
€ € €

5373845 11632449  17.006,304

— 211508 35082 ___ 247,000
6.685.883 11.867.541  17.263,394

315017 833074 _ 1148938

m——ﬂsm‘;' &&5 m
kY | 3
December Decembar
2018 2017
€ €
1.706.113 1.605.866
590.660 T47.344

46,500 6.500
2.343.273 2,3598.710

The carrying amounts of the Company's trade and ather payables are denominated in

Euro.
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24  Trade and other payables-current

n 31

Dacamber Dacember

2018 2017

€ €

Trade payables 332.264 425.052

Payables to related parfiaa (Nota 26{iv}) 11.803 -

Other payables 2.150.923 2.599.769

Accued expenses ... 760,808 1.068,963
Total financial payables within trade and other payables at amortisad

cost 3.248,300 4.093.784

Retenlions 893.428 276.973

Deferred income __240.184 240.184

Total other payables —nl33612 5817157

Tradas and other payables 4378011 _4510841

The fair value of frade and other payables which are due within one year approximates
their carrylng amount at the balance sheet date.

25 Cemmitments

(1) Capltal commlitments

Capital expenditure in respect of the expansion of the Mall of Cyptus, contracted
for at the balance sheet date but not yet mourred is as follows:

M 39
Dacember December
2018 2017
€ €
Investment property 706000 20381487
(il  License fee / Operating lease commitments ~ where the company Is the
lessor
License Fee
The Company's licanse fee/ operating lease income is derived from income from
rights for use of space.

Rental Income

The Company entered into an agreement to lease oul part of the land owned by it.
The lessee constructed on this land a retail outlet (KEA). The lease ferm signed is
for a pariod of 14 years and 10 months. At the end of the lease period the lesses
has the right to extend the lease tenm for another 14 years and 10 months and at
the end of the first extansion the lessee has the right far a second extenslon of 14

years and 10 months.
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25 Commitments (continued)

(i)  License fee / Operating lease commitments — whero the company Is the lessor
{contlnued)

The total amount of the minimum future license fees/ rentals receivable in
accordance with the non-canceliable operating lease commitments are as follows:

3 ki

December December

2018 2017

€ €

No latar than § year 13.267.404 10,096,506
Later than 1 year and no later then & years 37.748.887 27.390.206
Later than 5 years 10.535.754 3.040414

61,552,045 40.527.216

License fee / Operating lease commitments, take info consideration license
fees/rentals which will occur as a result of the expansion.

26 Related party transactions

As at the date of thie report the main shareholder of the Company is Atterbury Cyprus
Limited which owns 99,67% of the Company’s shares.

Atterbury Cyprus Limited Is contrelied by Atterbury Europe B.V., incorporated in
Netherlands, which owns 87,50% of the Company's shares.

The ultimate controlling party of the company as at 31 December 2018 is Brighthridge
Investments Ltd {Cyprus) through its indirect 43,78% shareholding in Atterbury Cyprus
Limited (the parent company).

The ultimate parent entity which prepares the consolidated financial statements of the
largest body of undertakings of which the Company forms part as a subsidiary
undertaking, is Atterbury Europe Holding B.V. , incorporated in Netherlands and its
consolidated financial statements are available at the following address & Schuttersveld
2316XG Leiden, The Netherlands,

Atterbury Cyprus Limited, incorporated in Cyprus with registered office at Arch, Makariou
1Il, 195, Neocleous House, 3030 Limassol, Cyprus, is the parent entify which prepares the
cansolidated financial statement of the smallest body of undertakings of which the
Company forms part as a subsidiary undertaking.
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26  Related party transactions {(continued)

{f) Purchases of services

Purchases of services:
Fliptype Holdings Limted
Atterbury Cyprus Limited
Alterbury Europa B.V,
Brightbridge Investments Limited

(i) Key management personnel compensation

The compensation of key management personnel is as follows:

Salaries
(lilj Directors’ remuneration
The total remuneration of the Directors was as follows:;

Fees

For the

paricd from

Year ended 1 July 2017
3 to 31
December December
2018 2017

€ €

303,004 152.188
302.896 36.599
1.109.002 456.583
78.000 -

For the

period from

Year snded 1 July 2017
3 fa 31
December Decembear
2018 2017

€ €
—l32.580 53178
For the

period from

Year ended 1 July 2017
5 | o031
December December
2018 2017

€ €
—8800 1250

{iv) Year-end/Period halances arising from sales/purchases of goods/services

Recaivables from related parties
Fatti Ltd

Payables to related parties (Note 24):
Brightbridge Investments Limited

3 3t
December December
2018 2017

€ €

= 5,000

11 '603 -

The above balances bear no interest and are repayable on demand.
The above companies are related due to common ownership.
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26  Related party transactions {continued)

(v} Borrowings from related parties

For the

period from

1 July 2017

k3| to 31

December December

2018 2017

€ €

Borrowings from pavent entity:

At baginning of year/period 10.827.246 11.736.927
Borrowings advanced during year/pericd 360.447 349.658
Borrowinge repald during year (8.836.288) {1.7156,020)
Intereet chasged (Note 13) 177382 255681
At end of yearfperiod (Note 21) 2326797 10,627,246

The amount payable to parent company, Atterbury Cyprus Limitad bears interest at
the rate of 4,38% (six months period ended 31 December 2017: 4,39%). No terms

or conditions have been agreed for its repayment and security.

For tha

period from

1 July 2017

Y| to 31

Degember December

21s 2017

€ €

Borrowings from related party:

At beglnning of yearfpsriod 1.114,303 -
Borrowings advanced during year/pariod 1.189.000 -
Borrowings advanced during year/period » 1.668.919
Borrowings assigned from refated party 40.017 -
Borrowings repaid {500.000) {583.304)
Interest charged (Note 13) 48008 27.688
At end of period/year (Nate 21) 1862328 1114303

The above amount is payable to related companies, The Mall of Engomi {(ME) Plc
which bears Interest at the rate of 4,38% (sbx months period ended 31 December

2017: 4,39%). No terms or conditions have been agreed for its repayment and

security.

For the
period from
1 July 2017
1] {0 31
December December
2018 2017
€ €

Borrowings from sharaholders:
At beginning of year/periad 2.842.236 2.902.000
Interest Charged 132404 40.236
Al end of periodfyear (Note 21) 3,074.640 2.942.236
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26  Related party tfransactions {continued)

{v} Borrowings from related partles (continued)

On 31 August 2017, the Company secured borrowings from related party
{Alterbury Europe B.V}, The loan is unsecured, bears interest at the rate of 4,5%
and is repayable [n 4 years from the date of the first advance (31 August 2017).
The Interest charged in the year amounted to €132.404 which was capitalized as
part of investment property as at 31 December 2018, The loan was obtained for
the purposes of the mall expansion, The loan facility amount is €7,000.000 and
funds will be obfained in tranches once the Construction Certificates are issued by
the Confractor on sight. Up to 31 December 2018, the Company had drawn

€2.902.000.

{(vi} Guarantses

The foliowing guarantees were provided to the Company by its parent Company
and other related entities as securily for its borrowings:

a) Atterbury Cyprus Limited guaranteed the loans of the Company for the amount
of €108.500.000 {Note 21).

b} The Mall of Engami {(ME) Ple guaranteed the loans of the Company for the
amount of €88.500.000 (Note 21).

c) Atterbury Cyprus Limited guaranteed the ioans of the Company for the amount
of €10.500.000 {Note 21).

(vii) Contigencles
The Company guarantees the loan of The Mall of Engomi (ME) Plc for the amount
of €23.000.000. No ifabilities are expected to ariss.

27 Evants after the balance sheet date

There were no matetial events afler the balance sheet date, which have a bearing on the
understanding of the financial staterments.

During 2017, the Company commenced the project for the expansion of The Mall of
Cyprus by about an additional area of 8000 m2, which will be used for retall, entertainment
and cuitural purposes in order to meet the demands of its customersivisitors and also
increase the variety of offerings at the mall. The first phase of the project was completed
on 28 March 2019 and most of the spaces have already been leased out. The second
phase which will be completed in July 2019, will see the project aimost taking its final form,
with more stores and existing shops transfered in new venues. With the expansion, about
an additional 300 parking placas shall be created as well.
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28  Accounting policies before 1 January 2018

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration recelved or receivable, and
represents amounts receivable for the sale of goods and services in the ordinary course of
the Company's activities, net of value added taxes, returns and discounts.

The Company recognises revenue when the amotint of revenue can be relfiably measured,
when it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the entity and when specific
criteria have been met far each of the Company's activities as described below. The
Company bases its estimate of return on historicad results, taking into consideration the
fype of customer, the type of transaction and the specifics of each arrangement,
Revenues eamed by the Company are recognised on the following bases:

(] Income from rights for use of space

The Income from rights for use of space is recognised on an accrual basis
according to the substance of the relevant adjustments.

{ii) Interest income
interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.

{iii} LeaseIncome

Income arising on operating leases is recognlsed on a straight-line basis over the
lease ferm.

Financlal assets

[{}] Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets in the following categories: financial
assels at fair vaiue throuigh profit or loss, loans and receivablas, held to maturity
investments and available for sale financial assets. The classification depends on
the purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Managemant determines
the classification of financial assets at initial recognition and In the case of assets
dassified as held fo maturity, re-evaluates this designation at the end of each
reporting period.

. Financlal assets at falr value through profit or loss

This category has two sub categories: financial assets held for trading and
those designated at fair value through profit or loss at inception. A financial
assel is classified as held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the short term. Financial assels designated as at fair value
through profit or foss at inception are those that are managed and their
performance is evaluated on a fair value baslis, in accordance with the
Company's documented investment strategy. Information about these
financial assets is provided Internally on a fair value basis to the Company's
key management personnel. Assets in this category are classified as
current assets if they are either held for trading or are expected 1o be
realised within twelve months of the balance sheet date.
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28

)

Accounting policies before 1 January 2018 (continued)

) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non derivative financial assefs with fixed or
determinable payments that are not quoted in an active market and for
which thera is no intention of frading the recaivable. They are included in
cumrent assets, except for maturities greater than twelva months after the
balance sheet date. These are classified as nonh current assets. The
Company's loans and receivables comprise “frade receivables®, “loan
receivable’, “other receivables”, "cash and cash equivalents™ and "bank
deposits with ariginal maturity above 3 months” in the balance sheet.

. Held-to-mafturity investments

Held to maturity investments are non derivative financial assets with fixed or
determinable payments and fixed maturities that the Company’s
management has the positive infention and ability to hokd to maturity thai do
not meet the definition of loans and receivables. During the year, the
Company did not hold any investments in this category.

a Avallable-for-sale financial assets

Avallable-for-sale financial assets are nan-derivatives that are slther
designated In this category If they do not have fixed maturities and fixed or
determinable payments and management intends to hold them for the
medium to long term or not dlassified in any of the other categories. They
are included in non-cumrent assets, unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of the investmant within fwelve months of

the balance sheet date.
Recognition and measuremant

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade
date which is the date on which the Company commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all
financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss, Financial assets
carmied at fair value through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value and
transaction costs are expensed in profit or loss. Financial assete are deracognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the financlal assets have expired or
have been transferred and the Company has transferred substantially all risks and

rewards of ownership.

Available for sale financial assets and financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables and held to
maturity fingncial assets are carried at amartised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the “financlal assets at fair
value through profii or loss” category are presented in profit or foss within “other
(losses)/gains - net” in the period in which they arise. Dividend income from
financial asssts at falr value through profit or lass is recognised in the profit or Joss
as part of other income when the Company's right to receive payments is
established.
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Recognition and measurement {continued)

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in a foreign currency
and classified as avallable-for-sale are analysed between fransiation differences
resulting from changes in amottised cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. The translation differences on monetary securities
are recognised in profit or loss, while translation differences on non-monstary
securities are recognised in other comprehensive income. Changes in the fair
value of monetary and non-monetary securities classlified as avallable-for-sale are
recognised in other comprehensive incoms.

When securities classified as avallable-for-sale are sold or impaired, the
accumulated fair value adjustments recognised in other comprehensive income are
included in profit or loss as gains and losses on *available-for-sale financial
assets”.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated using the effective interest
method is recognised In the profit or loss as part of other income. Dividends on
avallable-for-sale equity instruments are recognised In profit or loss as part of other
income when the Company's right to receive payments is established.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses at the balance sheet date whether there is objective
evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets is impaired.

A financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired and impairment losses
are incurred only if there is objective evidence of impalrment as a result of one or
more events that cccurred after the inltial recognition of the asset (a ‘loss event)
and that loss event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset or group of financial assets that can be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may Include indications that the debiors or a group of
debtors Is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter bankrupicy or
other financial reorganisation, and where observable data indicate that there is a
measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

For loans and receivabies category, the amount of the loss is measured as the
difference between the asset's carrying amount and the present vaiue of estimatad
future cash flows {(excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. The carrying
amount of the asset is reduced and the amount of the loss is recognised in the
profit or loss. If a loan or held-to-maturity investment has a variable interest rate,
the discount rate for measuring any impairment loss is the current effective interest
rate determined under the contract. As a practical expedient, the Company may
measure impaiment on the basis of an instrument’s fair value using an obsetvable
market ptice.

If, in a subsequent period, the amouint of the impairment loss decreases and the
decrease can be related objectively to an event occutring after the impalrment was
recognised (such as an improvement in the deblor's credit rating), the reversal of
the previously recognised impairment loss is recognised in the profit or {oss.
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In the case of equity investments classified as available for sale, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its cost is also evidence
that the assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale
financlal assets, the cumulative loss — measured as the difference betwean the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment ioss on that
financial asset previously recognised In profit or loss — Is removad from equity and
recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment losses recognised in the prafit or loss en equity instruments are not
reversed through the profit or loss, K, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a
debt instrument classified as available for sale increases and the increase can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognised
in profit or loss, the impairment loss Is reversed through the profit or loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

In the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents includes cash in hand, deposits
hald at call with banks with original maturities of three months or less that are readily
convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of
changes in value, and bank overdrafts. In the balance sheet bank overdrafts are shown

within borrowings In current liabilities.
Trade recelvables

Trade recelvables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less provision for impalrment. A
provision for impairment of trade recsivables is established when there is ohjective
evidence that the Company will not be abie to collect all amounts due according fo the
original terms of recelvables. Significant financial difficuities of the debtor, probabillty that
the debtor wilt enter bankruptcy or delinquency in payments are considered indicators that
the other receivable is impaired. The amount of the provision Is the diffarance between the
carrying amount and the recoverable amount, being the present value of estimated future
cash flows, discounted at the effective interest rate. The carying amount of the asset is
reduced through the use of an allowance acount, and the amount of the loss is recognised
in profit or loss "selling and marketing costs”. When a trade recajvable i uncoilectible, it is
written off against the allowance account for trade raceivables. Subsequent recoveries of
amounts previously written off are credited against "selling and marketing costs” in profit

or loss.

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of aliowance account, and
the amount of loss is recognised in profit or loss within 'selling and marketing costs'. When
a frade receivable is uncollectlble, it is written off against the allownance account far trade
receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against
‘selling and marketing costs’ in profit or loss.
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Interest Income

interest income from financial assets at FVTPL is included in the other gains/(losses) - net
on these assets. Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost and financial assets
at EVOCI caleulated using the effective interest method is recognised in the income
staternent as “Other income”. Interest income s calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset except for financlal assets
that subsequently become credit impaired. For credit - impaired financial assets — Stage 3
the effective Interest rate is applied to the net carrying amount of the financial asset (after
deduction of the loss allowance), for Stage 1 and Stage 2 — gross amount of financial
assets.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initlally at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost. Any differance between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss
over the period of the borrowings, using the effective interast method, unless they are
directly attributable to ihe acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset, in
which case they are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset.

The camying amount of the bank borrowings of the Company is adjusted to reflect revised
estimated cash flows. The Company recalculates the carrying amount of the borrowings,
by computing the present value of estimated future cash flows at the financial instrument's
original effective interest rate.The adjustment is recognised in profit or loss within finance
cost.

Fees pald on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as iransaction costs of the
Joan to the extent that it is probable that some ar all of the facllity will be drawn down. In
this case, the fee is deferred until the draw down occure. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is
capitalised as a prepayment (for liquidity services) and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borowings are removed from the balance sheet when the obligation specified in the
contract Is discharged, cancelied or expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or transfetred to ancther party and the
consideration paid, including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is
recognised in profil or loss as other income or finance costs.

A substantial modification of the terms of an existing financlal liability or a part ofitis
accounted for as an extinguishment of the original financial liabifity and the recognitlon of
a new financial liability. Any gain or loss on extinguishment is recoghised in profit or loss
except to the extent that it arises as a rasult of transactions with shareholders acting in
their capacity as shareholders when i is recognised directly in equity. The terms are
considered to be subsiantially different if the discounted present value of the cash flows
under the new terms, including any fees paid net of any fees recelved and discounted
using the original effective interest rate, is al least 10% different from the discounted
present value of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liabflity. Any costs or
fees incurred are recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment.
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Borrowing costs are interest and other costs that the Company incurs in conhection with
the bomrowing of funds, including interest on borrowings, amertisation of discounts or
premium relating to borrowings, amortisation of ancillary costs incumred In connection with
the arrangement of borrowings, flnance leage charges and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency borrowings to the extent that they are regarded as an adjustment to

interest costs.
Borrowing costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset, being an asset that necessarily lakes a substantial period of time to

get ready for its intended use or sale, are capitalised as part of the cost of that asset,
when it is probable that they will result in future economic benefits to the Company and the

costs can be measured reliably.

Borrowings are classified as current Jabilities, unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer setlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the balance sheet

date.

Independent Auditor's Report on pages 8 to 12.
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